# Government ePublishing System

# ePublishing System, Government of India

# **Tender Details**

Date: 01-Dec-2025 03:58 PM



<b>Basic Details</b>			
Organisation Chain	Department of Health Research	n  Indian Council of Medical Research	
Tender Reference Number	B/13012/01/2024-25/Courier		
Tender ID	2025_DoHR_820825_1	Withdrawal Allowed	Yes
Tender Type	Open Tender	Form of contract	Rate Contract
Tender Category	Services	No. of Covers	2
General Technical Evaluation Allowed	No	ItemWise Technical Evaluation Allowed	No
Payment Mode	Not Applicable	Is Multi Currency Allowed For BOQ	No
Is Multi Currency Allowed For Fee	No	Allow Two Stage Bidding	No

<b>Cover Detai</b>	ls, No. Of Covers - 2		
Cover No	Cover	Document Type	Description
1	Fee/PreQual/Technical	.pdf	Technical Bid of Procurement of Shipment of samples and courier services
2	Finance	.xls	Financial Bid of Procurement of Shipment of samples and courier services

Tender Fee Detail	<u>s, [Total I</u>	Fee in ₹ * - 0.00]		EMD Fee Details			
Tender Fee in ₹	0.00		1	EMD Amount in ₹	0.00	EMD Exemption Allowed	No
Fee Payable To	Nil	Fee Payable At	Nil	FMD F T	C		NIA.
Tender Fee	No			EMD Fee Type	fixed	EMD Percentage	NA
<b>Exemption Allowed</b>				EMD Payable To	Nil	EMD Payable At	Nil

Work /Item(s)					
Title	Procuremen	t of Shipment of samples an	d courier services		
Work Description	Procuremen	t of Shipment of samples an	d courier services		
<b>Pre Qualification Details</b>	Please refer	Tender documents.			
Independent External Monitor/Remarks	NA				
Tender Value in ₹	2,50,000	Product Category	Miscellaneous Services	Sub category	NA
Contract Type	Tender	Bid Validity(Days)	180	Period Of Work(Days)	365
Location	MUMBAI	Pincode	400012	Pre Bid Meeting Place	NA
Pre Bid Meeting Address	NA	Pre Bid Meeting Date	NA	Bid Opening Place	MUMBAI
Should Allow NDA Tender	No	Allow Preferential Bidder	No		·

<u>Critical Dates</u>			
Publish Date	01-Dec-2025 03:45 PM	Bid Opening Date	16-Dec-2025 11:30 AM
Document Download / Sale Start Date	01-Dec-2025 03:50 PM	Document Download / Sale End Date	15-Dec-2025 04:00 PM
Clarification Start Date	NA	Clarification End Date	NA
Bid Submission Start Date	01-Dec-2025 03:50 PM	Bid Submission End Date	15-Dec-2025 04:00 PM

NIT Document	S.No	Document Name	ı	Description		Document Size (in KB)
	1	Tendernotice_1.pdf		IT of Procureme ervices.	ent of Shipment of samples and courier	295.40
Work Item Documents	S.No	Document Type	Document N	lame	Description	Document Size (in KB)
		Tender Documents	ATC scope of v		Scope of work for Procurement of Shipment of samples and	1715.25

Tender Inviting Auth	<u>nority</u>
Name	Director
Address	ICMR-National Institute for Research in Reproductive and Child Health, Jahangir Merwanji Street, Parel, Mumbai-400012 Department of Health Research, Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, Govt. of India



ICMR-National Institute for Research in Reproductive and Child Health, Jahangir Merwanji Street, Parel, Mumbai-400012

Department of Health Research, Ministry of Health & Family Welfare, Govt. of India

Phone:022-24192134/2135 Eamail: stores@nirrch.res.in

Tender No. B/13012/01/2024-25/CourierServices/E- 188395

01.12.2025

Subject: Procurement of Shipment of samples and courier services.

Sir / Madam,

The ICMR-National Institute for Research in Reproductive and Child Health invites sealed quotations for the Procurement of Shipment of samples and courier services, as per the Scope of Work.

Technical bid and Financial bid documents should be in separate envelop with subject mention on cover.

Interested vendors are requested to submit their quotations in a sealed cover, clearly super-scribed with the tender number, due date, and subject, so as to reach the Institute on or before the due date at the following address:

# **Submission Address:**

Section Officer (Stores Department) ICMR-National Institute for Research in Reproductive and Child Health, J. M. Street, Parel, Mumbai - 400012

While submitting your tender, please carefully observe the Scope of Work documents. Tenders are liable to be ignored if any of the specified conditions are not complied with.

The tender is also available on the CPPP portal under Tender ID: 2025\_DoHR\_820825

Sd/-DIRECTOR





आई सी एम आर — राष्ट्रीय प्रजनन एवं बाल स्वास्थ्य अनुसंघान संस्थान स्वास्थ्य अनुसंघान विभाग, स्वास्थ्य और परिवार कल्याण मंत्रालय, भारत सरकार

> ICMR-National Institute for Research in Reproductive and Child Health

Department of Health Research, Ministry of Health and Family Welfare, Government of India

# Invitation of Tender for Logistics Services for

# Indian Council of Medical Research

National Institute for Research in Reproductive and Child Health

# **Table of Contents**

Requirement Matrix	3
Eligibility Criteria	4
Terms and Conditions	5
The Rights of The Director, ICMR-NIRRCH	6
Specific Terms and Conditions	7
Certifications	8
Supply, Billing and Payment	8
Annexure-I	9-10
Annexure-II	11
Annexure-III	12
Annexure-IV	13
Annexure-V	14

# Requirement Matrix

		Packaging				
Parameter Category	Sample Type	(With Validated Temp. Control)	Frequency	Package Size	TAT	Location
Non-Infectious Sample	Base Rate					
Infectious Sample	+[Amount]					
Chemicals	+[Amount]					
Surgical Consumables	+[Amount]					
Others (Sample Type)	+[Amount]					
Normal Packaging		Base Rate				
Dry Ice		+[Amount]				
Liquid Nitrogen		+[Amount]				
Controlled Temperature		+[Amount]				
Specific Packaging		+[Amount]				
Others (Specific Packaging)		+[Amount]				
Daily			+[Amount]			
Weekly			+[Amount]			
Monthly			+[Amount]			
Yearly or Rarely			Base Rate			
5 Kg				Base Rate		
Additional each 5 Kg				+[Amount]		
No Time Limit					Base Rate	
More than 48 Hours					+[Amount]	
24-48 Hours					+[Amount]	
Within 24 Hours					+[Amount]	
Zone 1						Base Rate
Zone 2						+[Amount]
Zone 3						+[Amount]
Zone 4						+[Amount]
Zone 5						+[Amount]
D - 1 - 1 - 2	1, 1,	J 1	, 517			

Base Rate: Specify the base rate for the standard shipment: ₹ per Shipment for 5Kg

Notes: If adjustments vary by specific conditions (e.g., -20°C vs. 4°C, or sample quantity), provide details in a separate section.

# Eligibility Criteria

- Indian Council of Medical Research-National Institute for Research in Reproductive and Child Health, indents to enter into a contract for providing all the logistics and shipment services to and from its field units to other Government/Approved Laboratories/ Research institutes all over India
- Bidder(s) should have at least five years of experience in handling logistics and shipment and in the field of cargo consolidation and customs clearance with respect to providing services to Government/ Autonomous Institutes/ or other reputed research organizations in India
- Bidder(s) participating in the tender must not have been blacklisted in GeM during the last '2 years' on any grounds.
- Bidder(s) participating in the tender must not have been blacklisted or de-registered by any Government Institution, Organization during the last five years for any discrepancies in providing services, or on any other grounds.
- Bidder(s) participating in the tender must not have been convicted by any court of law. Bidder(s) participating in the tender must submit a 'No Conviction Certificate', attested by a Gazetted Officer or Public Notary. This certificate must not have been issued earlier than one year prior to the publication date of the tender. The original copy may be requested for submission by the Technical Evaluation Committee, if required.
- The agency must have appropriate facilities for storing consignments, including those
  containing perishable items, to ensure prompt transportation to ICMR-NIRRCH,
  Mumbai. In case cold storage is required, the agency shall be able to provide or arrange
  suitable cold storage facilities accordingly.
- Agency must submit valid address proof of the registered warehouse/ cold storage/ distribution facility along with complete contact details.

# Terms and Conditions

- The period of initial contract will be for one year, which may be extended on annual basis based on performance. The rates for subsequent year(s) will be determined through negotiations with expert committee duly nominated by The Director, ICMR-NIRRCH.
- Technical Evaluation will be done in two stages
  - o The Expert Committee will evaluate the bids submitted online by bidder(s) based on the documents outlined in the Annexure.
  - Each unsuccessful bidder will be provided 2 days of time to address grievances as per the GeM regulations.
- Rejection of the Tender will be based on the following criteria:
  - o Failure to pass the two-stage technical evaluation.
  - o Submission of a bid of a conditional nature
  - o Failure to quote the reasonable rates in the financial bid
  - o Incomplete upload of required documents
  - o Incomplete or partial bid shall be liable for rejection
  - o Incomplete upload of bid without detailed technical information
  - Submission of incorrect or false information
  - o Improper upload of documents in the GeM portal; for instance, uploading the same documents against multiple options will result in rejection.
  - Submission of documents via email after the expiration of the submission period following the technical evaluation.
- The participants are required to furnish the list of past consignments with reference to the orders/ contracts from Government/Approved Laboratories/ Research institutes all over India, along with contact details.
- The agency must have appropriate storage facilities for consignments, including those containing perishable items, to ensure prompt transportation.
- If cold storage is required, such arrangements must be provided or facilitated by the agency.
- No weightage will be given to any agency, and evaluation will purely be based on merit based.

•

# The Rights of The Director, ICMR-NIRRCH

- The Director, ICMR-NIRRCH, reserves the right to:
  - Acceptance of any tender, in whole or in part, or rejection of any or all tenders at any stage, without assigning any reason. Authority is reserved to place orders with one or more firms if deemed necessary in the public interest.
  - Rejection or acceptance of any or all offers, including the lowest quoted offer, at any stage without specifying any reasons.
  - O The Director retains the right to cancel the bid at any stage of the tender process, should it be considered essential in the public interest.
  - Accept any offered higher price bid other than the lowest offered cost in case of Competent Authority identifies any attempt of cartelization or monopolization by one or more tenderers
  - Verify all the original documents of the bidder related to this tender at any point of time
  - Reject any or all tenders or cancel/withdraw the request inviting proposal without assigning any reason whatsoever and in such case no intending bidder shall have any claim arising out of such action.
- All the disputes relating to this tender enquiry and contract shall be subject to the territorial jurisdiction of Courts at Mumbai only.
- The decision of the Director, ICMR-NIRRCH, Mumbai, in the above matter shall be final and binding

# Specific Terms and Conditions

- The rate quoted for each trip/work shall be inclusive of all costs towards statutory levies and payments, all establishment costs, labour registration, wages paid to the labourers, PF, ESI or other remittances on behalf of the labourers, accommodation and transportation of their officers etc.
- The bidder shall provide necessary packing materials as per the requirement, at an additional cost if applicable. The cost details for each type of packing, as per the requirement matrix, must be submitted along with the bid submission.
- Loading and unloading charges as per package measurements maybe submitted along with the invoice if applicable.
- The agency may utilise the most efficient mode of transportation to despatch package from pickup to destinations with least possible time frame during the contract.
- However, in cases of holidays or any other unprecedented circumstances—such as roadblocks, vehicle accidents, strikes, local holidays, airline delays, or cancellations—additional lead time shall be applicable. The agency shall keep the institute informed of such instances from time to time.
- The Agency is responsible for arranging validated cargo data logger and GPS Tracking for each consignment for sharing status information to the institute.
- The institute shall provide the necessary statutory documents and certificates along with the laboratory chemicals/kits for the biological samples. It is also confirmed that the materials handed over will not be banned, restricted, or classified as hazardous.
- Upon delivery of the consignment, the institute may raise queries or concerns within 48 hours in case of any damage or loss of items. Such cases shall be treated as exceptions and will be eligible for payment only after the resolution of the raised concerns. If no queries are received within the stipulated period (48 Hours), the delivery shall be deemed accepted based on the proof of delivery, and the consignment may be included in the monthly payment schedule.

# Certifications

- For shipment and logistics services involving biological, infectious, or chemicals, the
  agency must possess valid registrations, safety certifications, and quality compliance
  documents to ensure adherence to applicable national regulations, particularly for both
  air and ground transportation.
- These certifications and requirements are critical for suppliers to safely and legally transport such materials, especially given their hazardous nature.
- Bidders must submit following certifications along with the bid to qualify the technical evaluation
  - o IATA Dangerous Goods (DG) Certification for Shippers
    - Eg: Category A: UN2814/UN2900, Category B: UN3373,UN1845
  - o Combined IATA/DOT Training Certification
  - Valid ISO certifications
    - Eg: ISO9001, ISO28001
  - o UN Specification Packaging Certification
    - Eg: UN 4G, P620, P650, UN3373
- Any other valid and equivalent certifications with international and national recognition can also be submitted.

# Supply, Billing and Payment

- The successful bidder shall claim the payment on a monthly basis by submitting
   separate copies of invoices corresponding to the different budgets allocated, as
   specified in the indent.
- Payment will be made on monthly basis upon completion of each successful consignment after the receipt of proof of delivery, challan & invoices with purchase order details including purchase order number, date and budget.
- The successful bidder submit copies of challan and invoices specifically made for ICMR-NIRRCH and get it approved from the competent authority.
- The contractor must maintain a record of consignment and submit the invoices during the last week of each month for payment as per order and budget.
- Payment for disputed claims, once the raised concerns are resolved, may be submitted along with the invoices for the forthcoming month.
- Payment of bills will generally be arranged within 3 to 4 weeks from the date of invoice submission.
- However, no claim shall be made by the supplier against ICMR-NIRRCH, in respect of
  interest or damage in case the payment is delayed for any reason beyond the control of
  the institute.

# Annexure-I

# Format of Undertaking for Logistics Partner (To be submitted on Non-Judicial Stamp Paper of Rs. 500)

Name	of Bidder(s)/ Company
Addres	ss
Email 1	ID
Phone:	:
Details	s of Contact Person:
To,	
The Di	irector,
ICMR-	-NIRRCH,
J.M St	reet, Parel
Mumb	ai-400012
Subjec	et: Undertaking for Compliance with Terms and Conditions of Tender
Dear S	Sir/Madam,
I/We.	, having registered office at hereby
	nly affirm and declare as follows:
1.	The firm is in the business of handling logistics and shipment and in the field of cargo consolidation and customs clearance with respect to providing services to Government/Autonomous Institutes/ or other reputed research organizations in India for the last five consecutive years as on date of opening of the tender.
2.	I/We possess a valid license issued by theof
	the State/ Indian Government for handling logistics and shipment of biological/ infectious samples, and valid as of the date of bid opening.
3.	I/We confirm that, the organization has not been blacklisted in GeM during the last '2 years' on any grounds.
4.	I/We confirm that, the organization has not been blacklisted or de-registered by any Government Institution, Organization during the last five years during the last Five years on any grounds
5.	I/We agree that the technical evaluation will be conducted in two stages, including a pre-bid meeting and an in-person interview with the Expert Committee, as specified by the Director, ICMR-NIRRCH
6.	I/We confirm that rates quoted in the financial bid are fixed and will remain unchanged throughout the contract duration, and the quoted rates are inclusive of all applicable taxes and charges.

From,

- 7. I/We understand that improper uploads or incomplete documents on the GeM portal, submission of conditional bids, or failure to comply with the terms and conditions may lead to the rejection of the bid.
- 8. No case is pending against the Firm under the above-mentioned Acts after the issuance of NO CONVICTION CERTIFICATE (To be submitted along with the technical bid)
- 9. The firm has not been blacklisted by any Government/ Autonomous Institutes/ or other reputed research organizations in India during the last three years.
- 10. There is no vigilance/CBI Case or court case pending against the firm.

I/We solemnly affirm and declare that the information provided above is true and correct to the best of my/our knowledge and belief. I/We understand that any deviation or false information may result in rejection of the bid, debarment, blacklisting, or legal action.

Date:		
Place:	[Stamp of Bidder(s) or Firm]	
	Signature of the Bidder	:
	<u> </u>	
	Name	:
	Designation	:
	Contact	:

# **Verification:**

The undertaking given above is true to my knowledge and belief and signed in presence of me on ------ day of ------month of the year -----

(Signature of Notary with full Name, date and stamp)

# Annexure-II

### MANDATE FORM

(On the letterhead of the firm)

# Beneficiary's option to receive payment through e-payment

- 1. Beneficiary name
- 2. Beneficiary address
- 3. Beneficiary account no.
- 4. Account type
- 5. 9-digit code number of the bank & branch appearing on the MICR cheque issued by Bank
- 6. Bank name
- 7. Bank address telephone no.
- 8. IFSC code (Indian Financial Service Code)
- 9. Photocopy of cancelled cheque to confirm correctness of IFSC code and account no.

I, hereby, declare that the particulars given above are correct and complete. If the transaction is delayed or not effected at all for reason of incomplete or incorrect information given by me as above, I would not hold the user institution responsible.

Date:

Signature and Name of Beneficiary/customer (Authorized Signatory)

# Annexure-III

### SERVICE ASSURANCE CLAUSE

(On the letterhead of the firm)

I/We hereby guarantee the safe and efficient transfer of the consignment from the pickup location to the drop location.

### 1. Cold Storage Facilities

I/We confirm that the firm possesses appropriate infrastructure for the storage of consignments, including those containing perishable items, to ensure timely transportation from the pickup to the drop location. In the event that cold storage is required, I/We shall provide or arrange suitable cold storage facilities accordingly.

(The agency must submit valid address proof of the registered warehouse, cold storage, or distribution facility along with complete contact details for technical evaluation)

# 2. Safety Assurance:

I/We guarantee that all consignments will be handled by trained and/or certified personnel. I/We further undertake the responsibility of arranging validated cargo data loggers and GPS tracking systems for each consignment to facilitate real-time status updates to the Institute.

## 3. Supply and Grievances:

Upon delivery of the consignment, the institute may raise queries or concerns within 48 hours in case of any damage or loss of items. Such cases shall be treated as exceptions and will be eligible for payment only after the resolution of the raised concerns. If no queries are received within the stipulated period (48 Hours), the delivery shall be deemed accepted based on the proof of delivery, and the consignment may be included in the monthly payment schedule.

# 4. Binding Decision:

The decision of the buyer, **The Director, ICMR-NIRRCH, Parel, Mumbai**, regarding the rejection and subsequent actions will be final and binding on the contractor.

Signature and Name of Beneficiary/custome (Authorized Signatory)
(Name & Address)

Date:

# Annexure-IV CHECKLIST FOR REQUIRED DOCUMENTS

Sl. No.	Particulars of Document Required	Yes/No
1	Original Tender Document signed and stamped on all pages.	
2	Annexure I on non-judicial stamp paper of minimum Rs.100/	
3	Latest GST Registration Certificate.	
4	PAN card of Bidder/Proprietor.	
5	Name and addresses of bankers along with other documents for ECS purposes, as per Annexure-II (Mandate form).	
6	Bank Guarantee for Performance Security as per GeM Contract	
7	No Conviction Certificate from the Competent Authority during the last three years. (Issued not earlier than one year from the date of tender opening.)	
10	Audited financial statement (Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account Statement) duly signed by a registered Chartered Accountant for the last three consecutive financial years (i.e., 2021-22, 2022-23, and 2023-24).	
11	Annual Turnover Certificate for the last three years (i.e., 2021-22, 2022-23, and 2023-24) duly signed by a registered Chartered Accountant.	
12	Valid Registration Certificate	
13	Certifications	
14	Experience certificate demonstrating at least five years of experience in handling logistics and shipment and in the field of cargo consolidation and customs clearance with respect to providing services to Government/ Autonomous Institutes/ or other reputed research organizations in India, duly signed by the Competent Authority.	
15	Annexure-III (Service Assurance Clause).	

# Annexure-V Shipment Locations and Zones

Shipment locations are organized into following zones for logistics and shipment services.

Zone 1	Mumbai/Pune
Zone 2	Outside Mumbai/Pune but in Maharashtra
Zone 3	Metro Cities Outside Maharashtra
Zone 4	Non-Metro Cities Outside Maharashtra
Zone 5	Rural or Out of Delivery Area (ODA)

# **Primary Locations**

Zone 1: M	Iumbai/Pune				
N	Mumbai				
	Pune				
Nav	ri Mumbai				
	Thane				
Zone 2: Outside Mumba	ai/Pune but in Maharashtra				
Ahmednagar	Malegaon				
Akola	Nagpur				
Amravati	Nanded				
Aurangabad	Nasik				
Baramati	Palghar				
Chandannagar	Panvel				
Chandrapur	Parbhani				
Dhule	Pimpri Chinchwad				
Gondia	Raigad				
Jalgaon	Sangli				
Jalna	Satara				
Kalyan	Solapur				
Karad	Vani (Dindori, Nasik)				
Kolhapur	Vasai-Virar				
Latur	Wardha				
Zone 3: Metro Citie	s Outside Maharashtra				
Place Name	State				
Visakhapatnam	Andhra Pradesh				
Delhi	Delhi				
Ahmedabad	Gujarat				
Surat					
Faridabad	Haryana				
Gurgaon					
Bangalore	Karnataka				
Jaipur	Rajasthan				
Chennai	Tamil Nadu				
Coimbatore	_				
Madurai					
Hyderabad	Telangana				
Ghaziabad	Uttar Pradesh				
Noida					

Place Name	State	Cities Outside Maharas	State
Guntur	Sittle	Ambala	State
Kakinada		Hissar	
Kurnool		Jhajjar	
Nellore		Karnal	
Ongole Andhra Pradesh Rajahmundry		Kurukshetra	
		Panchkula	
Srikakulam		Panipat	Haryana
Tirupati		Rewari	
Vijayawada		Rohtak	
Dibrugarh		Sirsa	
Guwahati	Assam	Sohna	
Silchar	7 KSSGIII	Sonepat	
Bhagalpur		Yamuna Nagar	
Gaya		Shimla	
Muzaffarpur	Bihar	Solan	Himachal Pradesh
Patna		Jammu	
Chandigarh	Chandigarh	Srinagar	—— Jammu and Kashmir
Bhilai	Chandigain	Bokaro	
Bilaspur		Dhanbad	
Durg	Chhattisgarh	Jamshedpur	Jharkhand
Raigarh	Cimatusgam	Ranchi	
Raipur		Belgaum	
Goa		Bellary	
Margoa	Goa	Davanagere	
Panaji		Gulbarga	
Anand		Hubli	
Baroda		Mangalore	 Karnataka
Bharuch		Manipal	Kamataka
Bhavnagar		Mysore	<del></del>
Bhuj		Shimoga	
Gandhidham		Tumkur	
Gandhinagar		Udupi	
Jamnagar		Calicut	
Junagadh	Gujarat	Cochin	
Mehsana	Oujarat	Ernakulam	
Nadiad		Kannur	
Navsari		Kamui	Kerala
Rajkot Surendranagar Vadodara		Palakkad	
		Thrissur	
		Trivandrum	
Valsad		Bhopal	
			— Madhya Pradesh
Vapi		Gwalior	

	Zone 4: Non-Metro (	Cities Outside Maharashtra	
Place Name	State	Place Name	State
Indore		Karimnagar	
Jabalpur	Madleysa Duadaala	Secundrabad	Telangana
Ratlam	Madhya Pradesh	Warangal	
Ujjain		Agra	
Berhampur		Aligarh	
Bhubaneswar	Odisha	Allahabad	
Cuttack		Bareilly	
Jharsuguda		Basti	
Puri		Faizabad	
Rourkela		Firozabad	
Sambalpur		Gorakhpur	
Pondicherry	Puducherry	Jaunpur	
Amritsar		Jhansi	
Bhatinda		Kanpur	Uttar Pradesh
Hoshiarpur		Lucknow	
Jalandhar		Mathura	
Ludhiana	D 1.	Meerut	
Mohali	Punjab	Modi Nagar	
Nawanshahr		Moradabad	
Patiala		Muzaffarnagar	
Phagwara		Raebareli	
Rajpura		Rampur	
Ajmer		Sultanpur	
Alwar		Varanasi	
Bhilwara		Dehradun	Uttarakhand
Bhiwadi	D : 4	Haldwani	
Bikaner	Rajasthan	Haridwar	
Ganganagar		Pantnagar	
Jodhpur		Rishikesh	
Udaipur		Roorkee	
Erode		Rudrapur	
Hosur		Asansol	
Karur		Barasat	
Nagercoil		Bardhaman	
Salem		Barrackpore	
Sivakasi		Durgapur	
Thanjavur	Tamil Nadu	Hooghly	West Bengal
Tindivanam		Kalyani (West Bengal)	]
Tirunelveli		Kharagpur	1
Tirupur		Nadia	1
Trichy		Siliguri	1
Tuticorin		South 24 Parganas	1
Vellore			

	Zone 5: Rural or Out of	of Delivery Area (OD	A)
Place Name	State	Place Name	State
Port Blaire	Andaman and Nicobar Islands	Betul	
Amalapuram		Chhindwara	Madhya Pradesh
Anantapur		Damoh	
Bhimavaram		Morena	
Eluru		Imphal	Manipur
Gudiwada		Aizawal	Mizoram
Karunagappally	Andhra Pradesh	Dimapur	Nagaland
Krishna		Bargarh	0.11.1
Nandyal		Bolangir	Odisha
Proddatur		Barnala	Punjab
Vizianagaram		Beawar	
Jorhat	Assam	Hanumangarh	
Korba	Chhattisgarh	Pali	5
Dadra & Nagar	Dadra and Nagar	G1 :	Rajasthan
Haveli	Haveli	Shirpur	
Kheda		Sikar	
Morbi	— Gujarat	Cuddalore	
Safidon	Haryana	Dharmapuri	
Deoghar	Jharkhand	Dindigul	
Bagalkot		Kancheepuram	
Bijapur		Karaikudi	
Chitradurga	Karnataka	Krishnagiri	Tamil Nadu
Dharwad		Kumbakonam	
Haveri		Nammakal	
Kolar		Rajapalayam	
Mahe		Theni	
Mandya		Vilupuram	
Alappuzha		Khammam	m 1
Aluva		Kottagudem	Telangana
Kasaragode		Kashipur	TT:: 11 1
Malappuram		Nainital	Uttarakhand
Mullassery	17. 1	Berhampore	W D
Neyyatinkara	- Kerala	Sodepur	West Bengal
Tiruvalla		2000	
Trichencode			
Valappad			